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Location

3704 POINT NEPEAN ROAD 2-10 FRANKLIN ROAD PORTSEA, Mornington Peninsula Shire

Municipality

MORNINGTON PENINSULA SHIRE

Level of significance

-

Victorian Heritage Register (VHR) Number

H1090

Heritage Overlay Numbers

HO198

Heritage Listing

Vic. War Heritage Inventory

Statement of Significance

Last updated on - May 5, 1999

What is significant?

The Former Fort Franklin (Portsea Camp) consists of a series of gun emplacements, associated barracks and
parade ground, commandant?s house and timber staff cottage as well as underground bunkers and observation



posts dating from c.1940. Buildings associated with the later use of the site by the Lord Mayor?s Children?s
Camp from 1946/47 to 1995 are also on the site. The fort was operated by the Victorian colonial government until
Federation when it was taken over by the Commonwealth. From 1946, the site was leased from the army and
then the Department of the Interior before being purchased by the Lord Mayor?s Children?s Camp Fund in
1964.The children?s camp is now known as the Portsea Camp.

The fort was sited on land formerly occupied in the 1850s by the Watson family who came to Australia from
Scotland in 1856. John Watson occupied an area of land which now forms part of the Portsea Camp and built a
six room limestone house there, as well as a hut on the foreshore. The limestone house now known as the
Commandant?s house may date from the Watson period, that is, prior to 1885. The land on which the fort stands
was compulsorily acquired in 1885 from John Watson by the Victorian government at a cost of £1500.

The fort was constructed between 1885 and 1889 as part of the system of fortifications of Port Phillip Bay to
protect Melbourne against invasion by Russian raiders. The outer defences in Port Phillip Bay consisted of forts
at Queenscliff, and Point Nepean (Crow?s Nest, Nepean and Eagle?s Nest). A fort was required at Portsea to
form part of the inner defences, together with South Channel Fort and Swan Island. In 1887 the form of the
emplacements can be seen in a contemporary illustration. In 1887 the armament at the Fort consisted of three
80-pound muzzle-loading guns, but it was by then decided to substitute three breech loading guns on the
disappearing principle. In 1892, Fort Franklin contained two 5 inch 3 ton guns, one 10 inch 25 ton gun, one 4.724
inch Quick Firing gun for sea defence and one 5 barrel Nordenfeldt field gun in case of land attack. (Michael
Kitson) The task of Fort Franklin was to guard the South Channel, preventing enemy shipping using the South
Channel and to provide a site for examination anchorage, where ?suspicious? ships were ordered to drop anchor
and be searched while under the surveillance of gunners.

The gun emplacements at Fort Franklin have been altered, for example the tunnels of the gun emplacement have
been bricked up for safety reasons. Some of the joinery around the storage recesses and other details remain.
Some evidence of original signage remains. The form of the three gun emplacements is intact and the mounds
demonstrate the way the guns were mounted. The barracks building was probably constructed c.1885-89. The
barracks, house and staff cottage have lost some detailing and require refurbishment, but the essential form of
the buildings and much of the internal arrangement and fabric survives. The staff cottage was on its present site
by 1887.

The fortifications at Fort Franklin represent part of an integrated coastal defence system dating from the late
nineteenth century and demonstrate contemporary developments in military architecture and engineering,
particularly to cater for the ?disappearing gun?.

A small hospital ward was built, probably at the time of the construction of the barracks and it is believed that five
soldiers who had returned from the Boer War died there in August 1902. The hospital building of that period is no
longer extant and may have been replaced by the present medical centre.

Later military use during World War II necessitated the construction of underground bunkers and observation
posts. The site was used as an ammunition dump by the United States Army during World War II. One of the
bunkers is believed to be an underground munitions store. Another partly underground structure to the west of
the site was an observation post. The forward searchlight emplacement on the cliff beyond the gun emplacement
was also constructed for use during World War II. The camp was also used as a migrant camp for a short time in
the immediate post-World War II period.

The buildings which date from the Lord Mayor?s Children?s Camp include dormitories, staff quarters, and
medical centre. In the 1970s the medical centre was a seven-bed hospital staffed by the Alfred Hospital. The
original idea for the camp was to provide seaside holidays to underprivileged children from remote areas. The
first groups of children came from the Mallee. Health checks and medical and dental treatment for the children
were for many years an integral part of the camp, but this became less necessary in the 1960s when better
health care became available. The barrack building in particular demonstrates changing patterns of occupancy
from use by the army to use by the Lord Mayor's Children's Camp.

There has been a long association between the community and the children?s camp occupation of the site, in
particular, involvement by medical and allied professionals, members of the fire, police and surf lifesaving
services and other volunteers, who have been involved in the camp since the 1940s. The community holds strong
shared memories of experiences and social life, which have created a strong connection to the place.

How is it significant?



The Former Fort Franklin (Portsea Camp) is of, architectural, historical, scientific and social significance to the
State of Victoria.

Why is it significant?

The Former Fort Franklin (Portsea Camp) is architecturally important as a rare and essentially intact example of
nineteenth century fortifications and military barracks in Victoria and as part of the larger system of fortifications
around Port Phillip Bay. The barracks is the only surviving intact example of nineteenth century military barracks
around Port Phillip Bay

The Former Fort Franklin (Portsea Camp) is historically important as part of the extensive system of fortifications
set up in the 1880s to defend Victoria against possible attack by Russian raiders. Changes to the fort in World
War II are also of historical significance, as are changes reflecting the later use of the site as a camp for
underprivileged children.

The Former Fort Franklin (Portsea Camp) is of scientific significance in demonstrating technical advances in
gunnery and defence construction in the late nineteenth century, particularly to cater for the newly invented
?disappearing gun?.

The Former Fort Franklin (Portsea Camp) is of social significance for its association with the Lord Mayor?s
Children?s Camp from the 1940s to 1995, and with the similar activities carried on by the Portsea Camp, in the
provision of holidays and health care for disadvantaged children with strong community involvement by
volunteers.
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Other Names LORD MAYOR'S CHILDREN'S CAMP,   FORT FRANKLIN,  
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Property Number

Usage/Former Usage

1870-1880 ; military ;

Physical Conditions

State of the Historic Environment survey report-Fair condition see events

Veterans Description for Public

The Former Fort Franklin (Portsea Camp) was constructed between 1885 and 1889 as part of the system of
fortifications of Port Phillip Bay to protect Melbourne against possible attack by Russian raiders. The outer
defences in Port Phillip Bay consisted of forts at Queenscliff, and Point Nepean (Crow's Nest, Nepean and
Eagle's Nest). A fort was required at Portsea to form part of the inner defences, together with South Channel Fort
and Swan Island. The Fort Franklin site is spread over an area of about 3 hectares.

The fort was sited on land formerly occupied in the 1850s by the Watson family who came to Australia from
Scotland in 1856. John Watson occupied an area of land which now forms part of the Portsea Camp and built a



six room limestone house there, as well as a hut on the foreshore. The limestone house now known as the
Commandant's house may date from the Watson period, prior to 1885. The land on which the fort stands was
compulsorily acquired in 1885 from John Watson by the Victorian government at a cost of £1500.

The task of Fort Franklin was to guard the South Channel, preventing enemy shipping using the South Channel
and to provide a site for examination anchorage, where 'suspicious' ships were ordered to drop anchor and be
searched while under the surveillance of gunners. Fort Franklin had the advantage of allowing the ships to be
anchored close to the land and not too far up the Bay towards Melbourne.

In 1887 the armament at the Fort consisted of three 80-pound muzzle-loading guns, but it was by then decided to
substitute three breech loading guns on the disappearing principle. In 1892, Fort Franklin contained two 5 inch 3
ton guns, one 10 inch 25 ton gun, one 4.724 inch Quick Firing gun for sea defence and one 5 barrel Nordenfeldt
field gun in case of land attack.

The barracks building was constructed c.1885-89 to accommodate permanent and volunteer troops. The
essential form of the buildings still survives. The staff cottage was on its present site by 1887. A small hospital
ward was built, probably at the same time as the construction of the barracks and it is believed that five soldiers
who had returned from the Boer War died there in August 1902.

Later military use during the Second World War necessitated the construction of underground bunkers and
observation posts. The site was alsoused as an ammunition dump by the United States Army during the Second
World War. One of the bunkers is believed to be an underground munitions store. Another partly underground
structure to the west of the site was an observation post. The forward searchlight emplacement on the cliff
beyond the gun emplacement was also constructed for use during the Second World War. The camp was also
used as a migrant camp for a short time in the immediate post-Second World War period.

In 1951-52, the army proposed to make Franklin Barracks an Officer Cadet School. This facility was established
at the Quarantine Station site after objections by the Children's Camp Committee. Nonetheless the site was
adapted for the Lord Mayor's Children's Camp (from 1946/47 to 1995) to enrich the lives of children from country
areas by providing seaside holidays. Today, Fort Franklin barracks stands as the only surviving intact example of
nineteenth century military barracks around Port Phillip Bay.

Extent of Registration

/n

1. All the buildings marked B1-B7as follows on Diagram 1090 held by the Executive Director:
B1 Gun Emplacements (3)
B2 Barracks and parade ground ( but excluding Connelly Hall)
B3 Commandants House
B4 Staff House
B5 Bunker
B6 Bunker/Observation Post
B7 Forward Observation Post

2. All the land marked L1 as follows on Diagram 1090 held by the Executive Director, being the land described in
Certificate of Title, Vol. 4328, Folio 593 and part of the foreshore reserve and part of the Franklin Road reserve.

This place/object may be included in the Victorian Heritage Register pursuant to the Heritage Act 2017. Check
the Victorian Heritage Database, selecting 'Heritage Victoria' as the place source.

For further details about Heritage Overlay places, contact the relevant local council or go to Planning Schemes
Online http://planningschemes.dpcd.vic.gov.au/

http://planningschemes.dpcd.vic.gov.au/

